C/M Clark has been transferred to "L" Directorate, Headquarters, Ottawa where she will be employed in our Ottawa Crime Detection Laboratory.

The End of an Era: June 7, 1976, was a rather significant date in the lives of RCMP members stationed in Southern Ontario. Not that this date will go down in the history books, but rather the life of Toronto Sub-Division ended with a golf tournament at the Burlington Springs Golf Club, located just north of Burlington, Ontario.

Toronto Sub-Division began life on September 15, 1958, with nine detachments encompassing the area from Belleville to Owen Sound and following the U.S. border to Fort Erie.

Throughout the following years, detachments were added and deleted, until upon conclusion, thirteen detachments existed. Toronto Sub-Division has been replaced with the more modern concept of police supervision called Management by Function. Throughout its existence, the Sub-Division was commanded by these officers:

- 1. Insp. K. M. Lockwood 1958 to 1961
- 2. S/Sgt. J. N. Craig, acting O.C. from 1961 to 1962
- 3. Insp. J. C. McPhee 1962 to 1965
- 4. Insp. J. M. Nelson 1965 to 1966
- 5. Insp. W. G. Lambert 1966 to 1971
- 6. Insp. L. H. Winters 1971 to 1973
- 7. Supt. W. T. F. Sherman 1973 to present

The golf tournament ending the life of the Toronto Sub-Division concluded with a banquet and presentation of trophies. Winner of the J. H. McFarlane memorial trophy for low gross was Cst. Garry Fellows, of the O.P.P. who is attached to the RCMP Drug Section at Oshawa. The McFarlane trophy was donated to Toronto Sub-Division by relatives of the late H. J. McFarlane of Belleville, a contractor in that area and former reserve member of the Force. This trophy has now been presented to the "O" Division Sports and Recreation Club for its annual golf tournament.

Another highlight of the tournament was the presentation to Supt. Sherman of a stein inscribed, "Presented by members of Toronto Sub-Division to their last Officer Commanding, Supt. W. T. F. Sherman, 1976." This was presented by Cst. Lynn Becker, the first female member to be stationed in the Sub-Division. In keeping with established tradition, the recipient drained the stein.

To the hundreds of members who have passed through Toronto Sub-Division and to the members still here, the old Sub-Division will always be remembered with fond memories — and so Toronto Sub-Division, we bid you a fond adieu.

International Volleyball: The first "O" Division International Volleyball Tournament was held in the "O" Division gymnasium on April 10 and 11, 1976. Eighteen teams including nine RCMP, one O.P.P. and eight U.S. Police, State and Federal agencies gathered to play a little ball and to promote inter-



Supt. G. L. Clark, seated, swears in his daughter, J. K. Clark as a Civilian Member of the Force, while Cst. B. A. MacDonald looks on.

national goodwill amongst police forces. Three thousand dollars in prized and trophies were donated by over fifty companies.

The tournament continued for two days and as teams left the floor with its multitude of spectators, it wasn't the usual long walk to the showers and then homeward bound. The main event waited ahead in the Messes, cafeteria and on the sidelines cheering other teams on. The RCMP Crimson Tide, a motley crew of volleyball nuts who actually practiced, won first prize. Toronto Drug Section claimed 2nd place only because they made veiled threats that their "enforcers" (Buffalo T.P.U.) would be unleashed.

The weekend tournament was a complete success and all visiting participants are looking forward to returning and helping to maintain what may be a new "O" Division tradition.

Top Row, L — R: Paul Cyr, Wayne Gilker, Ed Nicholson, Reg. King and Terry Keighley; Bottom Row: Dirk Hooijkaas, Fred Goode, Jim Ewanovich, Charlie Chetwyn and Bob Bartko.

